

# 846 Inventory Inquiry/Advice

UCS/V4010/846: 846 Inventory Inquiry/Advice

Company: General Mills Modified: 1/11/2018

Notes: Daily Inventory Snapshot

# **Table of Contents**

346	Inv	entory Inquiry/Advice	1
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	2
	GS	Functional Group Header	4
	ST	Transaction Set Header	6
	BIA	Beginning Segment for Inventory Inquiry/Advice	7
	N1	Loop Name	8
	N1	Name	9
	LIN	Loop Item Identification	10
	LIN	Item Identification	11
	DTM	Date/Time Reference	13
	REF	Reference Identification	14
	QTY	Loop Quantity	15
	QTY	Quantity	16
	CTT	Transaction Totals	17
	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	18
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	19
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	20

# 846

# **Inventory Inquiry/Advice**

# Functional Group=

**Purpose:** This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Inventory Inquiry/Advice Transaction Set (846) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used in the following ways: (1) for a seller of goods and services to provide inventory information to a prospective purchaser, with no obligation to the purchaser to acquire these goods or services; (2) for a representative of a seller of goods and services to supply inventory information to that seller; (3) for one location to supply another location with inventory information; and (4) for an inquiry as to the availability of inventory with no obligation on the seller of goods and services to reserve that inventory.

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>	
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	М	1			Must use	
	GS	Functional Group Header	М	1			Must use	
Heading:								
<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>	
010	ST	Transaction Set Header	М	1			Must use	
020	BIA	Beginning Segment for Inventory Inquiry/Advice	М	1			Must use	
LOOP ID				<u>5</u>				
080	N1	Name	0	1			Used	

#### **Detail:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP	<u>LOOP ID - LIN</u> <u>10000</u>						
010	LIN	Item Identification	M	1			Must use
100	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	10			Used
140	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1			Used
LOOP	<u>ID - QTY</u>			<u>99</u>			
320	QTY	Quantity	0	1			Used

### Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	CTT	Transaction Totals	0	1		N3/010	Used
020	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	M	1			Must use

#### **Not Defined:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	M	1			Must use
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	M	1			Must use

#### **Notes:**

3/010 Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of number of LIN segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the values of the quantities (QTY02) of each QTY segment.

# **ISA** Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

### **Element Summary:**

Element S		-	_	_		
<u>Ref</u> ISA01	<u>ld</u> 101	Element Name Authorization Information Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use
13401	101	Description: Code to identify the type of inform All valid standard codes are used. (Total Co	nation in the			Must use
ISA02	102	Authorization Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Information used for additional id the data in the interchange; the type of information				_
ISA03	103	Security Information Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code to identify the type of inform All valid standard codes are used. (Total Co		Security I	nformation	
ISA04	104	Security Information	M	AN	10/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> This is used for identifying the se in the interchange; the type of information is se				
ISA05	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Qualifier to designate the system receiver ID element being qualified All valid standard codes are used. (Total Co		code struct	ure used to desi	gnate the sender or
ISA06	106	Interchange Sender ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identification code published by the route data to them; the sender always codes the		-		e receiver ID to
ISA07	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Qualifier to designate the system receiver ID element being qualified	method of o	code struct	ure used to desi	gnate the sender or
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 38, Included Code Name  UCC EDI Communications ID (Comm ID)	•			
ISA08	107	Interchange Receiver ID	M	AN	15/15	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identification code published by the sender as their sending ID, thus other parties send to them				
		General Mills Note:  General Mills Test ID = 925119TEST  General Mills Production ID = 9251190000				
ISA09	108	Interchange Date	M	DT	6/6	Must use
10040	100	Description: Date of the interchange	B.4	TA 4	4/4	Must
ISA10	109	Interchange Time	M	TM	4/4	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Time of the interchange				

Ref ISA11	<u>ld</u> l10	Element Name Interchange Control Standards Identifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use
16/111	110	Description: Code to identify the agency respons is enclosed by the interchange header and trailer All valid standard codes are used. (Total Code:	sible for th			
ISA12	l11	Interchange Control Version Number	М	ID	5/5	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the version number	r of the in	terchange	control segments	s
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 13, Included: 1	1)			
		<ul><li>Code Name</li><li>00401 Draft Standards for Trial Use Approved for through October 1997</li></ul>	r Publicat	ion by AS(	CX12 Procedure	s Review Board
ISA13	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		Description: A control number assigned by the in	nterchang	e sender		
ISA14	l13	Acknowledgment Requested	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code sent by the sender to request All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes		hange ack	nowledgment (T	A1)
ISA15	l14	Usage Indicator	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code to indicate whether data encloinformation	sed by th	is intercha	ange envelope is	test, production or
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 3, Included: 1)				
		<u>Code</u> <u>Name</u>				
		P Production Data				
ISA16	l15	Component Element Separator	М		1/1	Must use

**Description:** Type is not applicable; the component element separator is a delimiter and not a data element; this field provides the delimiter used to separate component data elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element separator and the segment terminator

# **Functional Group Header**

Pos: **Not Defined - Mandatory** Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
GS01	479	Functional Identifier Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code identifying a group of application	ion relate	d transact	ion sets	
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 225, Included:	1)			
		<u>Code</u> <u>Name</u>				
		IB Inventory Inquiry/Advice (846)				
GS02	142	Application Sender's Code	M	AN	2/15	Must use
		Description: Code identifying party sending trans	smission;	codes agr	eed to by trading	partners
GS03	124	Application Receiver's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use
		Description: Code identifying party receiving tran	nsmission	; codes ag	reed to by tradin	g partners
		General Mills Note: General Mills Test & Production ID = 6125404455	5			
GS04	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD				
GS05	337	Time	М	TM	4/8	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock tim HHMMSSDD, where H = hours (00-23), M = minu decimal seconds; decimal seconds are expressed (00-99)	tes (00-5	9), S = inte	eger seconds (00	-59) and DD =
GS06	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use
		Description: Assigned number originated and ma	aintained	by the ser	nder	
GS07	455	Responsible Agency Code	М	ID	1/2	Must use
		Description: Code used in conjunction with Data	Element	480 to ide	ntify the issuer of	the standard
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 2, Included: 1)  Code Name  T Transportation Data Coordinating Committed		C)		
GS08	480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	М	AN	1/12	Must use
		Descriptions Code in discrimently assessing values			1 4 : -1 4:6:	-445 - EDI -4

Description: Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 33, Included: 1)

<u>Code</u> **Name** 

004010UCS Draft Standards for Trial Use Approved for Publication by ASC X12 Procedures Review

Board through October 1997

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

#### **Comments:**

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

# **ST** Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
ST01	143	Transaction Set Identifier Code	M	ID	3/3	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code uniquely identifying a Transaction	ction Set			
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 298, Included	: 1)			
		Code Name				
		846 Inventory Inquiry/Advice				
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use

**Description:** Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set

### **Semantics:**

1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).

# **BIA** Beginning Segment for Inventory Inquiry/Advice

Pos: 020 Max: 1
Heading - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of an Inventory Inquiry/Advice Transaction Set

### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<b>Type</b>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
BIA01	353	Transaction Set Purpose Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code identifying purpose of transact	ion set			
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 65, Included: 1	)			
		Code Name				
		08 Status				
BIA02	755	Report Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code indicating the title or contents	of a docu	ıment, rep	ort or supporting	item
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 522, Included:	1)			
		Code Name				
		LC Location Inventory Report				
BIA03	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as defined for Reference Identification Qualifier	a partic	ular Transa	action Set or as s	specified by the
BIA04	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Date expressed as CCYYMMDD				
		General Mills Note: Effective date of the transmis	sion.			

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. BIA03 identifies the number of the inquiry/advice that is transferred.
- 2. BIA04 identifies the date of the inquiry/advice that is transferred.
- 3. BIA05 identifies the time of the inquiry/advice that is transferred.

# **Loop Name**

Pos: 080 Repeat: 5

Optional

Loop: N1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

## **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
080	N1	Name	0	1		Used

# N1 Name

Pos: 080 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N101	98	Entity Identifier Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code identifying an organizational e	entity, a ph	nysical loc	ation, property o	r an individual
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1312, Included	d: 1)			
		Code Name				
		WH Warehouse				
N102	93	Name	С	AN	1/60	Used
		Description: Free-form name				
N103	66	Identification Code Qualifier	С	ID	1/2	Must use
		Description: Code designating the system/metho	od of code	structure	used for Identific	cation Code (67)
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 215, Included:	1)			
		Code Name				
		9 D-U-N-S+4, D-U-N-S Number with Four Ch	naracter S	Suffix		
N104	67	Identification Code	С	AN	2/80	Must use
		Description: Code identifying a party or other code	de			

### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. R0203 At least one of N102 or N103 is required.
- 2. P0304 If either N103 or N104 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Comments:**

- 1. This segment, used alone, provides the most efficient method of providing organizational identification. To obtain this efficiency the "ID Code" (N104) must provide a key to the table maintained by the transaction processing party.
- 2. N105 and N106 further define the type of entity in N101.

# **Loop Item Identification**

Pos: 010 Repeat: 10000 Mandatory

Loop: LIN Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify basic item identification data

### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	LIN	Item Identification	M	1		Must use
100	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	10		Used
140	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1		Used
320		Loop QTY	0		99	Used

#### **Semantics:**

1. LIN01 is the line item identification

#### **Comments:**

- 1. See the Data Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. LIN02 through LIN31 provide for fifteen different product/service IDs for each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

# LIN Item Identification

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory

Loop: LIN Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify basic item identification data

### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
LIN02	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code identifying the type/source of	the descr	iptive num	ber used in Prod	duct/Service ID (234)
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Included	: 1)			
		Code Name				
		VN Vendor's (Seller's) Item Number				
LIN03	234	Product/Service ID	М	AN	1/48	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying number for a product or		,		
		General Mills Note: The 10-digit General Mills m		ımber.		
LIN04	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	С	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code identifying the type/source of	the descr	iptive num	ber used in Prod	duct/Service ID (234)
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Included	: 1)			
		<u>Code</u> <u>Name</u>				
		GC Grade Code				
LIN05	234	Product/Service ID	С	AN	1/48	Must use
		Description: Identifying number for a product or	service			
		General Mills Note:				
		Statuses: BL = Blocked				
		QI = Quality Inspection				
		UR = Unrestricted (Available)				
		QR = Quality Restricted (Project Green Light)				
LIN06	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	С	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code identifying the type/source of	the descr	iptive num	ber used in Prod	duct/Service ID (234)
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Included	: 1)			
		Code Name				
		DV Location Code				
LIN07	234	Product/Service ID	С	AN	1/48	Used
		Description: Identifying number for a product or	service			
		General Mills Note: Use this for reporting invent	ory in an a	alternative	storage location	(such as PR). If

### Syntax Rules:

- 1. P0405 If either LIN04 or LIN05 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0607 If either LIN06 or LIN07 is present, then the other is required.
- 3. P0809 If either LIN08 or LIN09 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. P1011 If either LIN10 or LIN11 is present, then the other is required.
- 5. P1213 If either LIN12 or LIN13 is present, then the other is required.
- 6. P1415 If either LIN14 or LIN15 is present, then the other is required.

not filled in, this defaults to WA storage location for your site.

- 7. P1617 If either LIN16 or LIN17 is present, then the other is required.
- 8. P1819 If either LIN18 or LIN19 is present, then the other is required.
- 9. P2021 If either LIN20 or LIN21 is present, then the other is required.
- 10. P2223 If either LIN22 or LIN23 is present, then the other is required.
- 11. P2425 If either LIN24 or LIN25 is present, then the other is required.
- 12. P2627 If either LIN26 or LIN27 is present, then the other is required.
- 13. P2829 If either LIN28 or LIN29 is present, then the other is required.
- 14. P3031 If either LIN30 or LIN31 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Semantics:**

1. LIN01 is the line item identification

#### Comments:

- 1. See the Data Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. LIN02 through LIN31 provide for fifteen different product/service IDs for each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

#### **General Mills Note:**

Notes regarding status (LIN05):

If a material/batch is restricted and also in blocked stock; blocked "wins" and it should be shown as blocked in this transaction.

In our SAP application there are 3 main Inventory statuses: UR (Available), BL (Blocked) and QI (Incubation). The Green Light status is actually the status of the **batch** technically the **inventory**. The only time on the 846 we want to see the batch status of QR (restricted) is when the <u>batch</u> is in QR status and the <u>inventory</u> status is available. Otherwise, send the status of the inventory (BL or QI).

Quality Inspection (QI) applies to other types of testing (such as incubation holds). It also trumps QR or UR status as above.

# **DTM** Date/Time Reference

Pos: 100 Max: 10

Detail - Optional

Loop: LIN Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
DTM01	374	Date/Time Qualifier	M	ID	3/3	Used

Description: Code specifying type of date or time, or both date and time

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1112, Included: 2)

Code Name036 Expiration

Description: Date coverage expires

405 Production

Description: Used to identify dates and times that operations or processes were performed

DTM02 373 **Date** C DT 8/8 Used

Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

### **Syntax Rules:**

1. R020305 - At least one of DTM02, DTM03 or DTM05 is required.

- 2. C0403 If DTM04 is present, then DTM03 is required.
- 3. P0506 If either DTM05 or DTM06 is present, then the other is required.

#### **General Mills Note:**

This segment must be sent for all SAP batch managed materials. Otherwise it is an optional segment.

# **REF** Reference Identification

Pos: 140 Max: >1

Detail - Optional

Loop: LIN Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify identifying information

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
REF01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	M	ID	2/3	Must use

Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Included: 1)

Code Name

LT Lot Number

REF02 127 Reference Identification C AN 1/30 Must use

**Description:** Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

**General Mills Note:** 

The REF02 should contain either the GMI Lot Code (aka Date Code) if the Material was produced for General Mills or the Vendor's Lot Code.

If the Material was produced for General Mills, the format needs to be DDMMMYXX (where XX is the two-digit Producing Location identifier).

This format may appear on the case or shipping container with a four-digit year, but only include the last digit in this electronic format.

If the material is from a vendor, the vendor's lot code format should be used. This will vary by vendor.

### **Syntax Rules:**

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

# **Loop Quantity**

Pos: 320 Repeat: 99

Optional

Loop: QTY Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify quantity information

# **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
320	QTY	Quantity	0	1		Used

### **Semantics:**

1. QTY04 is used when the quantity is non-numeric.

# **QTY** Quantity

Pos: 320 Max: 1

Detail - Optional

Loop: QTY Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify quantity information

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
QTY01	673	Quantity Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the type of quantity				
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 832, Included:	1)			
		Code Name				
		17 Quantity on Hand				
QTY02	380	Quantity	С	R3	1/15	Must use
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
		<b>General Mills Note:</b> Do not use decimals.  Use a minus sign in front of negative values.				
		Ose a minus sign in noni oi negative values.				
QTY03	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	0	ID	2/2	Must use

**Description:** Code specifying the units in which a value is being expressed, or manner in which a measurement has been taken

**General Mills Note:** These codes represent the most commonly used Base Unit Of Measurement Codes within General Mills.

If your facility produces product for General Mills, a more comprehensive list may be needed for your operations. Please discuss your needs with a General Mills EDI support person. General Mills EDI support can provide a comprehensive list of all Base UOM codes or a list of codes specific to your location.

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 794, Included: 7)

<u>Code</u>	<u>Name</u>
BG	Bag
CA	Case
CW	Hundred Pounds (CWT)
EA	Each
FT	Foot
LB	Pound
PL	Pallet/Unit Load

#### Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0204 At least one of QTY02 or QTY04 is required.
- 2. E0204 Only one of QTY02 or QTY04 may be present.

#### **Semantics:**

1. QTY04 is used when the quantity is non-numeric.

# **CTT** Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Max: 1

Summary - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	M	N0	1/6	Must use

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

General Mills Note: Contains the number of LIN segments present in the transaction set.

## **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. P0304 If either CTT03 or CTT04 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0506 If either CTT05 or CTT06 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Comments:**

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

# **SE** Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	М	N0	1/10	Must use
		Description: Total number of segments included	in a trans	action set	including ST and	d SE segments
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number that mus assigned by the originator for a transaction set	t be uniqu	ie within th	e transaction se	t functional group

#### **Comments:**

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.

# **GE** Functional Group Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
GE01	97	Number of Transaction Sets Included	M	N0	1/6	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of transaction sets i (transmission) group terminated by the trailer co			0 1	rchange
GE02	28	Group Control Number	M	N0	1/9	Must use
		Description: Assigned number originated and	maintained	by the con	dor	

**Description:** Assigned number originated and maintained by the sender

#### **Semantics:**

1. The data interchange control number GE02 in this trailer must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group header, GS06.

#### **Comments:**

1. The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.

# **IEA** Interchange Control Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
IEA01	I16	Number of Included Functional Groups	М	N0	1/5	Must use
		Description: A count of the number of functions	al groups ir	cluded in a	an interchange	
IEA02	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> A control number assigned by the	interchang	e sender		